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Via Email Only 
 
 
August 26, 2022 
 
Steve McGrath 
Interim Executive Director 
Richardson Bay Regional Agency 
3501 Civic Center Dr. Room 308 
San Rafael, CA  94903 
Email: smcgrath@rgs.ca.gov 
 
SUBJECT:   BCDC - RBRA Settlement Agreement to Resolve Enforcement Case ER2010.038.00 

Pertaining to Federal Designation for Eelgrass Protection and Management Zone 
(Paragraphs 3 and 16) and Moorings (Paragraphs 6 and 14)  

 
Dear Mr. McGrath: 

BCDC is in receipt of your letter to Greg Scharff, dated July 27, 2022, requesting relief of the 
requirement to temporarily install moorings (Attachments 1) pursuant to Paragraph 6 of the 
Settlement Agreement signed by Stephanie Moulton Peters, Board Chair, RBRA, on August 12, 
2021, and me on September 8, 2021 (Attachment 2). This letter serves as our response. 

Federal Designation for Eelgrass Protection and Management Zone (Paragraphs 3 and 16). 
Paragraph 3 of the RBRA-BCDC Settlement Agreement requires the RBRA to “petition for any 
federal administrative action necessary to implement the [Eelgrass Protection and 
Management Plan’s] anchoring zone and Eelgrass Protection Zone/no-anchoring zone” within 
60-days of finalizing the EPMP.  The EPMP was finalized on August 12, 2021, but to date the 
RBRA has not initiated the required administrative actions, and at its most recent quarterly 
report to the Enforcement Committee RBRA representatives expressed that, based on informal 
communications with the Coast Guard, existing federal regulations provided adequate flexibility 
for managing the anchorage. BCDC staff disagrees with this assessment.   

The Code of Federal Regulations currently defines the Richardson Bay Special Anchorage Area 
as, “[t]hat portion of Richardson Bay, north of a line bearing 257° from Peninsula Point to the 
shore at Sausalito, except for federally maintained channels, and all channels approved for 
private use therein.”   33 CFR 110.126a.  While there is also a note encouraging mariners to 
consult local ordinances on “anchoring of vessels, placement of moorings, and use of anchored 
and moored vessels,” a local ordinance that modifies the area defined as the Special Anchorage 
Area would be in direct conflict with federal law and vulnerable to legal challenge.   
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The RBRA’s assurance that it would take formal administrative actions to eliminate any direct 
conflict with federal law if and when it proposed to reduce the anchorage area’s size was a key 
consideration in BCDC’s decision to enter this agreement.  While it may be that such legal 
challenges could be successfully defended, losing such a challenge would have significant 
consequence on BCDC’s interests here and in other areas of San Francisco Bay.  Preventing 
these conflicts is thus of paramount interest to the agency. 

Paragraph 16 of the RBRA-BCDC Settlement Agreement reserves BCDC’s right to take 
appropriate enforcement action in the event of any failure by the RBRA to comply with the 
Agreement’s terms.  BCDC herby provides notice that it believes RBRA is not in compliance with 
the Agreement because it has failed to petition for necessary federal administrative actions that 
will ensure the Eelgrass Protection Zone is not in direct conflict with the area defined as the 
Richardson Bay Special Anchorage Area under federal law.  BCDC requests that the agencies 
meet and confer within the next 30 days to create an action plan to redress this failure. 

Moorings (Paragraphs 6 and 14) and Federal Designation for Eelgrass Protection and 
Management Zone. Paragraph 14 of the RBRA-BCDC Settlement Agreement explains that 
waiver of any of the Agreement’s terms must be provided in writing and signed by the waiving 
party.  You have requested that BCDC waive Paragraph 6, which addresses the temporary use 
of conservation moorings.  BCDC recognizes that the anchorage area should be defined 
consistently by all levels of government, and that installing conservation moorings, even on a 
temporary basis, is problematic while potentially conflicting views about the anchorage area’s 
location exist.  BCDC will not require strict adherence with Paragraph 6 in the next 30 days, nor 
will it require strict adherence with Paragraph 6 during the time it takes to implement the 
action plan the parties create to address RBRA’s noncompliance with Paragraph 3 of the 
Agreement.  BCDC expects the action plan will result in completion of all necessary federal and 
local administrative actions to implement the Eelgrass Protection Zone on or before December 
15, 2023, as the Agreement requires.  BCDC is willing to reevaluate the need for temporary 
conservation moorings at that time.  

Thank you for your work to date to implement the terms of the Settlement Agreement. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
LAWRENCE GOLDZBAND 
Executive Director 
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
Bay Area Metro Center 
375 Beale St., Ste. 510 
San Francisco, CA  94105 
Tel: (415) 352-3653 
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Email: larry.goldzband@bcdc.ca.gov 
 
LG/mm 
 
cc:  Greg Scharff, Chief Counsel, BCDC 
  
 
Attachment 1 – Letter from Steve McGrath to Greg Scharff, dated July 27, 2022 
Attachment 2 – Executed Copy of Settlement Agreement without its attachments 
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RICHARDSON BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 

Marin County Community Development Agency, 3501 Civic Center Dr. Room 308, San Rafael, CA  94903 
(415) 971-3919

July 27, 2022 

Mr. Greg Scharff 
General Counsel 
Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale St., Suite 510 
San Francisco, CA  94105  via email only to 

Re:  RBRA/BCDC Settlement Agreement; Moorings 

Dear Mr. Scharff, 

As you know BCDC and RBRA executed an Agreement in August 2021 that 
resolved an enforcement action and stipulated certain actions to be taken by 
RBRA at certain points between execution of the Agreement and October 15, 
2026. 

Included in the Agreement is a requirement to install a mooring field of 
‘approximately 15 – 20 moorings’ (Section 6). 

RBRA now requests relief from this requirement for the following reasons: 

1 RBRA staff estimates that potentially only five or six of the eleven 
vessels remaining in the ‘Safe and Seaworthy’ program are suitable, 
structurally, for placement on a mooring; 

2 With approximately $60,000 expended to date and $165,000 budgeted 
for FY 23 (including funds for 20 moorings), the estimated cost for 
each mooring is approximately $30,000. This does not include cost of 
removal in 2026; 

3 These funds can be better used to meet the common goals of the 
RBRA and BCDC to: 
a. Supplement the funds available for any buyback program should

available funds prove insufficient; and/or
b. Consider hiring a dedicated part- or full-time case manager to work

with the anchor-out population; and/or
c. Subsidize slip fees or insurance requirements for vessels moving

from the anchorage to a marina; and/or

Attachment 1
DocuSign Envelope ID: 93C76BA1-5285-4421-B2DE-2B8D71B67803



 

d. Reserve dedicated space in an existing marina for the storage of 
impounded vessels; and/or 

e. Any other program, process or practice that will advance the 
common goal of the RBRA and BCDC to reduce and eventually 
eliminate the presence of illegally anchored vessels on Richardson 
Bay. 
 

RBRA believes the above enumerated actions to be a better and more efficient 
use of public funds. 
 
In summary, RBRA requests that it be relieved of the obligation to install 
moorings as any part of the Agreement, and, if so relieved, commits to using the 
remaining funds for the mooring project for the actions outlined above. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, and I look forward to your response. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Steve McGrath 
Interim Executive Director 
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